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June 5, 2023 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

OF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 

AND RECORD OF ACTION 

 

June 13, 2023 

 

FROM 

BRENDON BIGGS, Director, Department of Public Works – Solid Waste Management 

 

SUBJECT 
..Title 
Agreement with the Baker Community Services District for Operation of the Baker Medium 
Volume Transfer Processing Facility 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve Agreement No. 23-528 with the Baker Community Services District for operation of 
the Baker Medium Volume Transfer Processing Facility, and transportation of municipal solid 
waste collected to the Barstow Sanitary Landfill in the event the County is unable to provide 
service, in the amount not to exceed $348,254 for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2026, 
with an option to extend for one additional three-year period.  
(Presenter: Brendon Biggs, Director, 387-7906) 
..Body 
 
COUNTY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
Provide for the Safety, Health and Social Service Needs of County Residents. 
Pursue County Goals and Objectives by Working with Other Agencies and Stakeholders. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in the use of Discretionary General Funding (Net County 
Cost) as the Department of Public Works – Solid Waste Management Division (SWMD) is 
financed by fee revenue. SWMD establishes fees that are charged to the public and other 
agencies for utilization of the County’s Waste Disposal System. Funding for year one of the 
agreement in the not-to-exceed amount of $116,084.56, and ongoing annual costs thereafter, 
will be included in SWMD’s 2023-24 recommended budget and in future recommended 
budgets. 
 

Tasks Annual Cost 

Operation Cost $46,350.72 

Transport Cost (if County is unable to provide the service) Up to $55,182.92 

Hydraulic Fuel & Fluid $2,500.00 

Rent $9,550.92 

Maintenance and Facility Improvements $2,500.00 

Total Annual Cost: $116,084.56 

 
The annual cost of up to $55,183 per year to haul municipal solid waste to the Barstow Sanitary 
Landfill is only in the event that the County is unable to perform this function. Historically, over 
the last 25 years since the Baker Community Services District (BCSD) has been operating the 
Baker Medium Volume Transfer Processing Facility (BMVTPF), the BCSD has not  used this 
service. The total agreement cost is approximately $348,254 over the three-year term.   
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The recommended agreement with the BCSD will allow for the continued operation of a 
community collection center on property owned by the BCSD, as well as allow for the 
transportation of municipal solid waste from the BMVTPF to the Barstow Sanitary Landfill, if the 
County is unable to transport the waste (e.g. due to equipment breakdown).  
 
The BCSD has been operating a community collection center on its property since June 1997, 
when the County’s then landfill operation contractor entered into an agreement with BCSD to 
construct and operate the collection center. From June 2001 to present, the County has 
contracted with the BCSD to continue to operate the community collection center. 
 
The current Agreement No. 15-226 was originally approved by the Board of Supervisors (Board) 
on May 5, 2015 (Item No. 35) in the amount of $266,025 for a three-year term from July 1, 2015 
to June 30, 2018. On May 1, 2018 (Item No. 33), the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to the 
agreement to increase the agreement by $177,349, from $266,025 to $443,374, and extend the 
term two years, from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020. On June 23, 2020 (Item No. 68), the Board 
approved Amendment No. 2 to the agreement, increasing the total agreement amount by 
$317,040, from $443,374 to $760,414, and exercising the last option to extend the term by three 
years, from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023.  
 
SWMD requests Board approval of a new agreement to allow the BCSD to continue providing 
waste disposal services to County residents of the Baker area. The term of the agreement will 
be three years, from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2026, with the option to extend the term for one 
additional three-year term. 
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS  
This item has been reviewed by County Counsel (Jolena Grider, Deputy County Counsel, 387-
5455) on May 3, 2023; Finance (Carl Lofton, Administrative Analyst, 387-5404) on May 24, 
2023; and County Finance and Administration (Paloma Hernandez-Barker, Deputy Executive 
Officer, 387-5423) on May 26, 2023. 
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Record of Action of the Board of Supervisors 
San Bernardino County 

 
APPROVED (CONSENT CALENDAR) 
 
Moved: Joe Baca, Jr.   Seconded: Curt Hagman 
Ayes: Col. Paul Cook (Ret.), Jesse Armendarez, Dawn Rowe, Curt Hagman, Joe Baca, Jr. 
 
 
Lynna Monell, CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
BY _________________________________ 
DATED: June 13, 2023 
 

 
 

cc: PW/SWMD - Meeka w/agree 
Contractor - c/o PW/SWMD w/agree 
File - w/agree 

CCM 06/29/2023 

 


